PHONE: (510) 747-4300
FAX: (510) 522-7848

—Alameda—j TTY/TRS: 711

Affordable Housing
Corporation

701 Atlantic Avenue e Alameda, California 94501-2161

AGENDA SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE & TIME Thursday, February 9, 2023 - 6:31 PM
LOCATION

Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA

Pursuant to Assembly Bill No.361 (Chapter 165,Statutes of 2021) approved by the Governor
on September 16,2021) codified at Government Code Section 54953 a local legislative body
is authorized to hold public meetings remotely via teleconferencing without complying with
the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph M. Brown Act when, among other
requirements, a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting during a proclaimed state
emergency, and makes the public meeting accessible “via a call-in option or an internet-
based service option” to all members of the public seeking to access and attend the meeting,
offer public comment, and address the legislative body.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Public access to this meeting is available as follows:
Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/839395273927?pwd=QIFkTm040UIkRU5JVIZOcURuUIdBdz09

Meeting ID: 839 3952 7392
Passcode: 411773

Persons wishing to address the Board of Directors are asked to submit comments for the
public speaking portion of the Agenda as follows:

e Send an email with your comment(s) to jpolar@alamedahsg.org and
vcooper@alamedahsg.org prior to or during the Board of Directors meeting
e Call and leave a message at (510) 871-7435.

When addressing the Board, on agenda items or business introduced by Directors, members
of the public may speak for a maximum of three minutes per agenda item when the subject is
before the Board.

Persons in need of special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Alameda
Affordable Housing Corporation Board of Directors, please contact (510) 747-4325 (voice),
TTY/TRS: 711, or_jpolar@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will
enable the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation Board of Directors to make reasonable
arrangements to ensure accessibility or language assistance.

& &

Page 1 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
February 9, 2023

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1.
2.
3.
4.

ROLL CALL - Board of Directors
COMMISSIONER RECUSALS
Public Comment (Non-Agenda)
CONSENT CALENDER

Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted by one
motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the Board
of Directors or a member of the public.

4.A.
4.B.

5.

5.A.

5.B.
5.C.

6.

7.
8.
9

Approve Minutes of the Special Board of Directors Meeting held January 11, 2023. Page 3
Accept Monthly Report on Construction in Progress. Page 7
AGENDA

Accept Report on Incomes at Independence Regarding Proposed Rent Increases for
April 2023. Page 9

Create an Ad Hoc Committee on Acquisitions and Rehabilitation projects. Page 16

Accept the report on the Substantial Recapitalization Plan for Esperanza Apartments. Page 18
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S COMMUNICATIONS

DIRECTORS COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Directors)

ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING

***Note***

Documents related to this agenda are available for public inspection and copying at the
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation office, 701 Atlantic Avenue, during normal business

hours.

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to serve the
public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. The Board of Directors exists to
conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations are conducted before the people and
are open for the people’s review.

In order to assist the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation’s efforts to accommodate
persons with severe allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related
disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive
to various chemical based products. Please help the Alameda Affordable Housing
Corporation accommodate these individuals.

a &

Page 2 of 28



PHONE: (510) 747-4300
FAX: (510) 522-7848

|—A|ameda—| TTY/TRS: 711
Affordable Housing
Corporation

701 Atlantic Avenue » Alameda, California 94501-2161

DRAFT MINUTES
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 11, 2023

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Grob called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m.
1. ROLL CALL - Board of Directors

Present: Director Grob, Director Tamaoki,
Director Joseph-Brown, Director Kaufman,
and Director Sidelnikov

Absent: Director Hadid and Director Husby

2. COMMISSIONER RECUSALS

None.

3. Public Comment (Non-Agenda)

None.

4. CONSENT CALENDER

Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted by one
motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the Board
of Directors or a member of the public.

*4.A. Approve Minutes of the Special Board of Directors Meeting held December 15, 2022.
*4.B. Accept Monthly Report on Construction in Progress.

Items accepted or adopted are indicated by an asterisk.

Director Tamaoki moved to accept the Consent Calendar items, and Director Grob
seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken, and the motion passed
unanimously.

Yes 5 Director Grob, Director Tamaoki,

a &

Page 3 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
January 11, 2023

Director Joseph-Brown, Director Kaufman,
and Director Sidelnikov

Absent 2 Director Hadid and Director Husby

5. AGENDA

5.A. Accept an Update on Incomes at Independence Plaza and Approve Proposed Rent
Increases for March 2023.

Stephanie Shipe, Director of Portfolio Management, provided a presentation that
included a recap of the rent increases implemented since 2017, and summarized the
2023 Rent Increase Proposal for Independence Plaza (IP) property.

In response to the Board, Ms. Shipe stated that while the proposed set-asides are
not in a regulatory agreement, the amounts proposed were made in consideration of
allowing the property to be financially successful, and the goal to syndicate the
property at a future date.

Ms. Shipe stated that staff is presenting the following three proposals for approval:
e Proposal 1: Minimum Annual rent increases of 3.5% for 2023, 2024 and 2025
for all tenants up to the TCAC maximum rent for their assigned income range.
e Proposal 2: Additional Annual Rent Increases dependent on rent burden for
2023, 2024 and 2025. If approved, this proposal would become effective
March 1, 2023.
e Proposal 3: Over-Income Households move to the 80% TCAC rent.

Following discussion of these proposals, Director Grob moved to continue the item
for one month and create an Ad-Hoc Committee with Director Tamaoki and Director
Kaufman to further discuss this item, and Director Tamaoki seconded the motion. A
roll call vote was taken, and the motion passed unanimously.

Yes 5 Director Grob, Director Tamaoki,
Director Joseph-Brown, Director Kaufman,
and Director Sidelnikov

Absent 2  Director Hadid and Director Husby

5.B. Approve the Report on Results of 2022 Physical Needs Assessments (PNA) Studies.

Joseph Nagel, Construction Project Manager provided a presentation that
summarized the Results of the 2022 Physical Needs Assessments (PNA) Studies.
Mr. Nagel stated that after staff and FPI perform a full assessment of the needs
identified, staff anticipates returning to the Board, in August 2023, with a
comprehensive plan and the respectively associated costs.

In response to Director Tamaoki, Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development
stated that sources, other than the $9M reserves, which may be able to aid in

a &

Page 4 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 3
January 11, 2023

covering the 20 year costs (approx. $19M) include project reserves as well as
operations (i.e. repairs and upgrades on turns). The portfolio is also managed to
allow for occasional withdrawal of funds through leverage or another form of debt in
order to fund these types of repairs. It is not anticipated that the $9M reserves will be
the sole source of funding for the next 20 years, but the results of this study do reflect
that AAHC must address the identified needs strategically.

Director Kaufman moved to approve the Report on Results of 2022 Physical Needs
Assessments (PNA) Studies, and Director Grob seconded the motion. A roll call vote
was taken, and the motion passed unanimously.

Yes 5 Director Grob, Director Tamaoki,
Director Joseph-Brown, Director Kaufman,
and Director Sidelnikov

Absent 2 Director Hadid and Director Husby

5.C. Accept the report on the Substantial Recapitalization Plan for Independence Plaza
and China Clipper Plaza.

Allyson Ujimori, Senior Project Manager provided a presentation that summarized the
Substantial Recapitalization Plan for Independence Plaza (IP) and China Clipper,
and the three Renovation Scopes identified for these properties.

Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director stated that as a part of the overall Strategic Plan
to preserve our properties, staff is provided this presentation to inform the Board and
seek general feedback. Staff plans to return to the Board with a report on the
Esperanza property in March 2023 and a full proposal in August 2023.

In response to Director Grob, Ms. Ujimori stated that after considering the results of
the PNA Studies and the needs, size, and age IP, China Clipper, and Esperanza,
staff determined that approximately $5M will be needed to address the critical scope
items at these properties.

Director Tamaoki expressed gratitude for the staff's work on performing such in depth
analysis of the property needs.

Director Tamaoki moved to accept the report on the Substantial Recapitalization Plan
for Independence Plaza and China Clipper Plaza, and Director Grob seconded the
motion. A roll call vote was taken, and the motion passed unanimously.
Yes 5 Director Grob, Director Tamaoki,
Director Joseph-Brown, Director Kaufman,
and Director Sidelnikov

Absent 2 Director Hadid and Director Husby

a &

Page 5 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 4
January 11, 2023

5.D. Adopt Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Alameda Affordable Housing
Corporation Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by the Governor of
the State of California on March 4, 2021, and Making Findings Authorizing Continued
Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Board of Directors Pursuant to Brown Act
Provisions, as amended by Assembly Bill No. 361.

Director Kaufman moved to Adopt Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of
Emergency by the Governor of the State of California on March 4, 2021, and Making
Findings Authorizing Continued Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Board of
Directors Pursuant to Brown Act Provisions, as amended by Assembly Bill No. 361,
and Director Grob seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken, and the motion
passed unanimously.

Yes 5 Director Grob, Director Tamaoki,
Director Joseph-Brown, Director Kaufman,
and Director Sidelnikov

Absent 2 Director Hadid and Director Husby

6. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment)

None.

7. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S COMMUNICATIONS

At the request of Ms. Cooper, Greg Kats, Director of Administrative Services
introduced Radha Mehta, Management Analyst and provided a brief summary of her
professional experience.

8. DIRECTORS COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Directors)

None.

9. ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING

Director Grob adjourned the meeting at 8:31 p.m.

Vanessa M. Cooper Chair Grob, President
Secretary and Executive Director Board of Directors

a &

Page 6 of 28



PHONE: (510) 747-4300
FAX: (510) 522-7848

|—A|ameda—| TTY/TRS: 711
Affordable Housing
Corporation

701 Atlantic Avenue ¢ Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Board of Directors

From: Joseph Nagel, Construction Project Manager

Prepared By: Joseph Nagel, Construction Project Manager

Date: February 9, 2023

Re: Accept Monthly Report on Construction in Progress.
4.B.

BACKGROUND

There were a number of costs and planned portfolio projects described in the Reserve Policy
and other approvals from the May 2022 Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA)
Board of Commissioners meeting. Because of the large number of items currently underway,
staff will provide a periodic update on Construction In Progress (CIP) activities.

DISCUSSION

1. Independence Plaza-
The Board approved up to $1,950,000 in funds to complete the Independence Plaza
balcony and guardrail repairs. Permit applications were submitted electronically to the
building department on June 16, 2022 for all five (5) buildings (703, 705, 707, 709, 711)
and the 5th and final permit was approved on December 20, 2022. Balcony repair work
began in Mid-September on the first four buildings and as of January 24, 2023 repairs
have been completed on 37 of 53 balconies and all 25 of the additional guardrails. The
project paused with the inclement weather but has now resumed.

2. 701 Office/Maintenance Garage Conversion

a. Architect RFQ-The RFQ for a design architect was issued on September 19, 2022.
RFI questions were received from 11 firms by the October 21, 2022, deadline and
the answers to the RFI questions were issued on October 27, 2022. Final RFQ
responses were due on November 14, 2022.

b. We received 8 submittals for the Office and Maintenance Garage Conversion and
selected 4 of the 8 for interviews and expect to make a selection by January 27,
2023.

c. GC RFP- The RFP for a General Contractor is being drafted. We expect that this
RFP will be issued by June 1, 2023.

a &

Page 7 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
February 9, 2023

3. Tilden Commons — Security & Readiness for AHA Maintenance
At the recently acquired AUSD property at 2615 Eagle Ave., smoke detectors, security
alarms and cameras have been installed to properly secure the property. The smoke
detectors originally installed were defective and caused false alarms. The vendor agreed
to replace the defective units (30) at their cost. We originally expected the replacements
to be delivered and installed by November 2022. However, due to supply chain issues, the
smoke detectors were received from the manufacturer and installed in early January. All
replacement units have been installed and are on-line and in working condition.

4. Physical Needs Assessments
AAHC has contracted with the consulting firm PPA (Physical Property Analysis LLC) to
conduct PNA’s (Physical Needs Assessments) on the portfolio of properties. All of the
assessments have been completed and we have received all of the reports. AHA staff is
currently addressing a short list of life/safety issues noted in the reports. AHA is also
reviewing the long term projections for all properties and will present our recommendations
to the Board of Commissioners in August 2023.

FISCAL IMPACT

The Board has approved these costs from the Construction in Progress section of the 2022
Reserves Policy (May 2022 BOC).

CEQA
None.

RECOMMENDATION
Accept Monthly Report on Construction in Progress.

ATTACHMENTS
None

Respectfully submitted,

el

Joseph Nagel, Construction Project Manager

a &

Page 8 of 28



PHONE: (510) 747-4300
FAX: (510) 522-7848

|—A|ameda—| TTY/TRS: 711
Affordable Housing
Corporation

701 Atlantic Avenue ¢ Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Board of Directors

From: Stephanie Shipe, Director of Portfolio Management

Prepared By: Stephanie Shipe, Director of Portfolio Management

Date: February 9, 2023

Re: Accept Report on Incomes at Independence Regarding Proposed Rent
Increases for April 2023.
5.A.

BACKGROUND

Independence Plaza was built in 1990 using a HUD insured loan program and contributed to
the affordable housing requirements of the City’s Community Investment Commission (CIC)
(former Redevelopment Agency) by restricting 65 of the 186 units to Very Low (50% Area
Median Income (AMI) or below), Low (80% AMI or below), and Moderate Income (120% AMI
or below) households through an Affordable Housing Agreement dated January 18, 1989
(Agreement) which is regulated by the State of California. Within this Agreement, 29 of the 65
units must serve very low-income households. The Agreement also required the Housing
Authority to file a plan to make 100% of the units affordable. Along with the Agreement, the
property benefits from a tax-increment operating subsidy (Subsidy) to support the operating
budget of the property given reduced rental rates for affordability at 50% AMI. This
Agreement, and the 80% AMI Housing Authority covenant are the only regulatory restrictions
associated with the property. The Agreement has been amended twice (2004 and 2010), to
extend the term to 2024 and 2026, respectively. In 2026, the Subsidy will expire. Housing
Authority staff refinanced the mortgage in 2014 to secure a reduced interest rate and to align
the mortgage terms with the Affordable Housing Agreement and Subsidy expiration. In June
2017, staff presented several scenarios about how to plan for financial self-sufficiency and
mortgage maturity when the Subsidy expires, and only rental revenue is available for
operations. If no changes were implemented, the property would fall off a financial cliff with a
substantial shortfall each year after 2026 and would not have funds to complete necessary
upgrades to keep the property in good condition.

Prior board memos on this topic can be found on the AHA website www.alamedahsg.org, or
in the board packets of November 2017 and May 2018.

Rent Increases
In 2014, staff implemented a simplified rent policy for new move-ins, including only the three

a &

Page 9 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
February 9, 2023

rent categories identified in the Agreement: 50% AMI, 80% AMI, and 120% AMI. The 50%
AMI and 80% AMI rent categories were identified as the “Affordable” units. At present, there
are no new entrants into the 50% or 120% rent categories, and the top level has been
capped at 80% AMI.

In 2016, staff completed a rent study and income certifications, which were presented to the
Board in December of that year. This showed that there were significant variations in rental
rates between households for the same income level and same unit size. Additionally, there
was a limited connection between a household income and the rent paid. The property had
little to no rent increases over the previous decade and the rents were (and remain) well
below the affordable rents allowed by the State. In November 2017, staff proposed a 5% rent
increase for existing households, the first rent increase since 2015.

This increase went into effect in February 2018, 2019 and again in 2020. No rent increases
were implemented in 2021 due to the COVID pandemic. Note: A 3% rental increase for non-
subsidized units was implemented in 2022.

New Move-Ins Rents

Turnovers were anticipated to be an opportunity to raise rents without affecting an existing
resident. The assumption was that turnover would average 10%/year (about 20 units), which
has been consistent over the past 4+ years.

- In 2018, new move-ins were charged affordable rents at 60% AMI, and their incomes
cannot exceed 80% of area median income.

- From 2022, new move-ins were charged affordable rents at 70% AMI, and their incomes
cannot exceed 80% of the median income.

- The property now has a total of 48 tenant-based section 8 holders as residents (26% of
the property).

The with the max rent that can be collected for voucher holders corresponds higher new
move-in rent, as required by HUD.

In 2020, the project received a Project-Based Voucher (PBV) award for 25 units that brings
additional income to the property, while still allowing very low-income residents to continue to
live affordably. The PBV contract added a 15 % increase in tenant revenue over 2020 and
2021. Overall, revenues have increased by 24% compared to the 15% increase predicted in
2018

Expenses
Although the 2018 memo anticipated a $100,000 annual shortfall each year after 2026, the

revised projected annual shortfall after 2026 is $220,000 if current operating expense trends
continue, as reported to the Board in November 2021. This is due to inflation, increased
property expenses and some rent increases that were not fully implemented as planned,
especially during the peak of the COVID pandemic. In November 2021, staff brought an
update to the refinancing strategy for Independence Plaza to the Board of Commissioners.
Further discussion was had in January 2022 and January 2023 board meetings regarding
rents.

Staff are working on several areas to reduce costs including:
 OQutsourcing the property March 1, 2023 to FPI, a third party property management

company.
= &

Page 10 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 3
February 9, 2023

 Use CIC funds (approx $6,886,675 remaining) to make essential repairs now before 2026,
including the current balcony project and other key repairs.

* A revised process to assess and if necessary, address cost allocation to the property post
FY2024-5.

DISCUSSION

Staff has reviewed the current rents and 2022 incomes of all residents at Independence
Plaza. After careful review of all households, staff are recommending increases based on
bands of rent burden. Staff reviewed the 2022 income levels of all households and compared
them to their current rent level.

The current AMI allocation based on residents’ 2022 income is:

Non-Subsidized Subsidized
Current Income Levels (PBV/HCV)
<= 31%-  51%- 61%- 81%- <=50% TOTAL
30% 50% 60% 80% 100%
1 45 23 9 14 4 64 159
Bedroom
2 1 7 4 4 1 9 26
Bedroom
TOTAL 46 30 13 18 5 73 185*

*There is one additional unit which is a manager’s unit, not included in this mix.

The current rent ranges for residents in the following income brackets are:

Current Rent Ranges

<30% 50% 60% 80% 100% Voucher Rents
1 $460- $482- $1,050- $833- $833- $1,541-$1,818
Bedroom $1347  $1798 $1798  $1,818 $1308
2 $472- $1,166- $991- $1,556- N/A $1,849-$2,179

Bedroom 1,616 $1,762 $1,401 $2,179

The corresponding max 2022 TCAC rents are:

TCAC Max RENTS

30% 50% 60% 70%* 80%
1 Bedroom $746 $1,282 $1,550 $1,818 $2,086
2 Bedroom $893 $1,536 $1,858 $2,179 $2,501

NOTE: 70% AMI rent is charged with 80% AMI Max Income

a &

Page 11 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 4
February 9, 2023

Currently, every newly vacant unit is leased at up to the 80% AMI (Income Bracket) with a
70% AMI Rent. This allows the property to reach a more balanced income approach over
time which is much needed as the current tenant income and rent is skewed to the lower end,
which will not support refinancing in 2026.

Rent Increase Proposals
These proposals are cumulative.

Proposal 1: Minimum annual rent increases of 3.5% for 2023, 2024 and 2025 for all non-
subsidized tenants up to the TCAC maximum rent for their assigned income range.

AHA is proposing that all households receive a minimum of a 3.5% rent increase. Regular,
consistent rent increases are necessary to be able to finance the property in 2026 and to
avoid the need for larger increases in the future. It is important to set a rent increase plan for
at least 3 years so that the current and new residents understand what is planned.

If approved, this would increase income in 2023 by approximately $4,119/mo. and increases
for tenants range from $16 to $64 a month for rent. The two subsequent years increase
income by $4,263/mo. in 2024 and by $4,412/mo. in 2025 respectfully.

Proposal 2: Additional annual rent increases dependent on rent burden for all non-
subsidized tenants for 2023, 2024 and 2025

For those households that have a rent burden of 29% or less a tiered structure is proposed to
gradually align rents with income levels. HUD recommends a 30-40% rent burden for tenants.

Additional Rent Increase Rent Burden Total Annual Increase
Rate

1.5% 26% - 29% $2,396

3.5% 16% - 25% $11,915

4.5% 10% - 15% $3,492

If approved, this would increase income by an additional $1,484/mo. and increases range
from $29 to $113 a month for rent. The two subsequent years would increase income by
$1,534/mo. in 2024 and by $1,587/mo. in 2025 respectfully.

These tiered rent increases would continue until the unit reaches their TCAC maximum rent

for their income designation. At that point, their annual increase would equal the change in
the amount of the new TCAC rent cap, which is typically between 2-5% each year.

a &

Page 12 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 5
February 9, 2023

Number of households with the proposed increase rate:

TOTAL Rent Rent Burden 1 BED 2 BED Total

Increase Rate

2.5% Contract N/A 64 9 73

Rents*

3.5% > 30% 53 10 63

5% 26% - 29% 14 1 15

7% 16% - 25% 22 5 27

8% 10% - 15% 6 1 7
TOTAL 159 26 185

* Contract rents refers to households with either an HCV or PBV subsidy. All households with a voucher
are budgeted with a 2.5% increase to adjust to 70% TCAC Max Rent.

Proposal 3: Over-Income Households move to the 80% TCAC rent

Currently there are 5 households whose income is greater than 80% AMI. AHA staff
recommends immediately moving those households into the highest income bracket and
allow rent to be gradually increased up to the 80% AMI Limit at the highest rent increase rate.

For all scenarios, as previously approved by the Board, if the household’s income were to be
reduced, rent would not be lowered. The resident would have to apply and be added to an
interest list for a unit with a lower set-aside and income qualify using tax credit income
qualification guidelines once an available unit comes available. This is a standard method
used by TCAC projects to adjust rent burden as incomes change in accordance with fair
housing. AHA has previously used this method at IP. These proposals have already been
reviewed with the residents at Independence Plaza and January 18w, 2023.

Implementing the following proposals would allow Independence Plaza to reach financial
solvency by 2026. Please see the attached proforma budget with 3.7% average increase
assumption for 2023, 2024 and 2025.

FISCAL IMPACT

The proposed 2023 increases, including the increase to the subsidized rents, will result in an
additional approximately $8,449/month as of April 1st, 2023.

CEQA
Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION

Accept Report on Incomes at Independence Regarding Proposed Rent Increases for April
2023.

ATTACHMENTS

a &

Page 13 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 6
February 9, 2023

1. IP Proforma w Tiered Rent Increases

Respectfully submitted,

Stephanie Shipe, Director of Portfolio Management

a &

Page 14 of 28



8Z 40 G| obed

38e8uo 192 pJeH
swoou| SunesadQ 19N ION
2WO0dU| SSOID DAI03)43 193
'233 ‘sa84ey) 2dueudjuley ‘Alpune|awodu] Jayi0
1UdY |B13UB}Od SSOID HdO)|
A
€TV'8€ET ¥8L'0TT S8SV8T €9L°6ST 8SC'9ET 0T0VTT 596'C6 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 yse9 joN
669666 000°005°T 000°00S'T 9/6'988'C SOL'SEL'T D10 MeIq payoadxg
565°96C 9608LL SL'€SL LES'EL6'T L¥1'289 anpuadexy |epde) pajoadxgy
€TV'8ET ¥8L°0TC S8SV8T €9£°6ST 8579€T 0TO'VIT 596'76 (vot‘c0s) (y06'TCL) (sszovs) (6evcT6)

00159 00159 00159 00159 00T‘S9 00159 00159 9/LT'v9 9/T'v9 9/Tv9 9LT'v9 9/1v9 SAIS59Y
- - - - - - - 960°LLL 960°LLL 960°LLL 960°LLL 960°LLL 19aQ pleH
€75'€0€ ¥88SLT 589°617T £98VTC 85€‘T0T OTT6LT 590°8ST 89T'8ET 89€°6TT L1056 (£9122) (989°TT2) ION
699'V0L€ | 99L'965°€ | 900°T6V'E L6T°06E°E TGST62°E 089°G6T‘E 709°70T'E GET'TTOE 005726°C 07€6€8°C L0L'T06°T 5505
m:_ﬂm‘_wmo
[E101L
€61°800' | 059'C/L8€ | T69'TVLE 09T°ST9‘E 806°T6V'E T6L'VLE'E £99°092'€ €0V'0ST'E 898°€V0'E 8EEVER'T 0vS'628°C 905'509°C %E0T 193
66T°0T 7586 1256 6616 8888 1858 L6T'8 9108 SvLL L9V'L 00Z'L SYTET %ST0 BN
(z65'T8)  ((€£8'8L)  |(£9T'9L) (T65°€L) (zot'tL) (869'89) (5£€99) (0€T'¥9) (296'19) (zeL'69) (665°L5) (506°2S) %0°T Aoueoep
68560V | 8T9'TV6'E | LEE'808‘E 765'6L9°¢€ €TT'SSSE T06'VEV'E SYL'8TE'E L15°90C°€ ¥80°860°€ €09'986C 6€6'6/8'C €97'S¥9C YdD

220T 01 payjun

ve/ee Ad | egze Ad TENE AL 1€/0€ Ad 0€/6Z A4 62/8C Ad 82/LT Ad 12/9T Ad 92/ST Ad Seivz Ad yeiez Ad [44114
198png 198png 198png 198png 198png 198png 128png 193png 193png 198png 198png Buijreir
[enidy YIUOI 21
%S'€E %S'€E %S'€E %S'€E %S'€E %S'€E %S'€E %S'€E %L'E %L'E %6'8 9seadU] JudY pajdadx3 adesany

S9SE3JIU| JuUdY paJall \>> ewJojo.id eze|d wucmﬁcwamvc_




PHONE: (510) 747-4300
FAX: (510) 522-7848

|—A|ameda—| TTY/TRS: 711

Affordable Housing
Corporation

701 Atlantic Avenue ¢ Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Board of Directors

From: Allyson Ujimori, Senior Project Manager

Prepared By: Allyson Ujimori, Senior Project Manager

Date: February 9, 2023

Re: Create an Ad Hoc Committee on Acquisitions and Rehabilitation
projects.
5.B.

BACKGROUND

The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) is evaluating multiple recapitalization
opportunities, as well as maintaining the rest of the portfolio's needs. There are times when
board guidance may be needed more frequently than the monthly meeting period allows.
Staff would benefit from access to Board members, particularly on financing strategies, scope
decisions, and development issues on an ad hoc basis to be responsive during peak periods.

Previously, the Board had other ad hoc development committees, one on the North Housing
development and the other on Acquisitions and Development; both have provided fruitful
insight and guidance on the pipeline projects.

DISCUSSION

The current pipeline of projects that might be considered by the Committee on Acquisition
and Rehabilitation Projects include the recapitalization of Independence Plaza, China Clipper
Plaza, Esperanza Apartments, or any proposed portfolio work. It is anticipated that these
meetings would be by phone or video conference. It is anticipated that the Ad Hoc
Committee on Acquisitions and Rehabilitation Projects will be active only periodically or as
staff establish the construction scope, renovation timeline, and loan structure through
December 2023.

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact.

CEQA
CEQA is not applicable to this item.

a &

Page 16 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting
February 9, 2023

RECOMMENDATION
Create an Ad Hoc Committee on Acquisitions and Rehabilitation Projects.

Page 2

ATTACHMENTS
None

Respectfully submitted,

Allyson Ujimori, Senior Project Manager

a &

Page 17 of 28



PHONE: (510) 747-4300
FAX: (510) 522-7848

|—A|ameda—| TTY/TRS: 711

Affordable Housing
Corporation

701 Atlantic Avenue ¢ Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Board of Directors

From: Allyson Ujimori, Senior Project Manager

Prepared By: Allyson Ujimori, Senior Project Manager

Date: February 9, 2023

Re: Accept the report on the Substantial Recapitalization Plan for Esperanza
Apartments.
5.C.

BACKGROUND

As owner-operators, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) and its affiliate, the
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC), periodically undergo a third-party review of
the physical needs at its properties. Since Esperanza is owned by AAHC, this memo is being
brought to the AAHC Board.

Staff is responsible for strategies to recapitalize AHA'’s existing portfolio to bring needed
maintenance to its properties. The last assessment was done in 2021, when staff presented
the AHA Reserves Policy and identified construction in progress (CIP) work of the existing
portfolio at an amount more than $10 million. As a part of its recapitalization strategy,
Independence Plaza (IP), China Clipper Plaza (CC), and Esperanza Apartments (ESP) are
top priorities given their financial position, building condition, and/or size of the property. ESP
is the subject of this Board Report. Updates pertaining to IP and CC were presented to the
Board in January 2023.

ESP was built in 1972, and the property is over fifty years old. The 6.9-acre property includes
120 homes. These are all former Public Housing units. There are 24 2-story buildings
throughout the property and contain 1-, 2-, 3-, 4-, and 5-bedroom units. AAHC owns the
property and improvements. AHA owns the land. In addition, there is a preschool (leased by
Alameda Family Services) and a community center which includes leasing and social
services offices. Part of the rear parking lot is leased to a local business.

As of January 2023, the property is managed by FPl Management. General operations and
the operating cash balance at the property are healthy, as most households receive rental
subsidies, and the property does not have rental restrictions below 80% of the Area Median
Income (AMI). Currently, the property has a mortgage that fully matures in 2044, and as of
December 2022, the outstanding loan balance is $12.3 million. The monthly payment is

a &

Page 18 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
February 9, 2023

approximately $85,000. The property can exit the loan as early as June 2029 without having
to pay a prepayment penalty but must pay the outstanding loan balance (estimated to be
approximately $10 million).

In the past, the property has undergone some renovations, including roofing replacement,
exterior painting, and window replacement. The property is also routinely passing HQS
inspections. However, given the property’s age and size, staff propose additional work to
address leaking windows, repairs to the exterior building envelope, accessibility, electrical
upgrades, and common area improvements. ESP’s recapitalization feasibility analysis
enables staff to evaluate the opportunities to renovate the property immediately and in the
future.

DISCUSSION

Staff used the same process to evaluate ESP that was applied to IP and CC. Please see ltem
5.C from January 2023 for discussion on how staff have evaluated the construction and
financial needs of the subject properties, along with discussion of common ways owners pay
for renovations.

Construction Scope

Across the three target properties, including ESP, scope is generally categorized into three
categories: Life-Safety, Minimum, and Syndication scopes. Generally, the Life-Safety Scope
includes immediate work pertaining to the safety of residents and staff. The Minimum Scope’s
goal is to address the capital needs over the next three years. The Minimum Scope includes
addressing life-safety, priority accessibility issues, some common area improvements, and
may include a specific number of renovated unit interiors. For ESP, unit renovations include
replacing unit electrical breakers, replacing plumbing fixtures, replacing gas wall furnaces,
replacing bathroom fans and appliances, replacing kitchen cabinets and countertops, interior
painting, and replacing flooring. The Syndication Scope addresses the property needs over
the next twenty years, including the items in the Life-Safety and Minimum Scopes, landscape
and irrigation improvements, additional replacements of the property’s original finishes and
appliances, and additional measures that would go towards meeting applicable funding
requirements.

Please see Attachment 1 for a breakdown of anticipated costs for the Life-Safety, Minimum,
and Syndication Scopes for Esperanza.

Financial Analysis
For all properties, staff evaluated the feasibility of each of the five funding mechanisms:

¢ Property Reserves

¢ Mortgage Refinance

e Tax Credit Syndication

o AHA Reserve Policy’s Preservation Funds
¢ Deferring Maintenance

Additionally, staff explored multiple scenarios for the mortgage and tax credit strategies,
where income and/or expenses were modified to allow for financing to be feasible or to
generate additional proceeds. The goal of the financial analysis is to establish which funding

a &

Page 19 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 3
February 9, 2023

strategies could be used to fund the needed improvements.

For ESP, staff evaluated a couple of scenarios for a traditional mortgage refinance and a 4%
tax credit syndication. For the mortgage scenarios, staff used escalated property income and
expense assumptions to 2029, along with typical underwriting standards. Despite having a
balanced budget, typical underwriting criteria hinder the property by not underwriting the
Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) income (because it is possible that the tenant could leave
and take that voucher elsewhere). For reference, staff projects that the property will receive
approximately $1.7 million in HCV subsidies in Fiscal Year 2023. As a result of underwriting
practices, the property’s income is too low, and expenses are too high to leverage a
mortgage to cover the Life-Safety scope, design, relocation, permitting, and financing costs.
Staff evaluated ways to decrease expenses, but the constraints of operating a large, older
property proved to be a challenge. It is possible that when the property is converted to a new
management company, some operational expenses may be realized. Furthermore,
Esperanza’s income restrictions are set to 80% AMI, which most residents are paying
through the support of a voucher (either project based or housing choice), with only a handful
that are unsubsidized (approx. 11 are unsubsidized, 38 are project based, and approx. 70 are
housing choice voucher users). Additional project-based vouchers would help underwriting,
but don't bring a great deal of additional income, as most residents are already paying the
payment standard rent. In any event, the existing loan cannot be refinanced until its
prepayment period ends in 2029. Staff will continue to monitor refinancing as a future option.

Staff evaluated a 4% tax credit strategy given the property’s Syndication Scope is large and
requires additional funding sources beyond a mortgage. The 4% program is allocated through
a non-competitive process; however, it must be paired with tax-exempt bonds, which over the
last two years have become competitive. Under a 4% tax credit strategy, similar operating
expenses, the inability to underwrite HCV income, and more strict income restrictions
(required by the tax credit program) made it difficult to sustain a mortgage and positive cash
flow. Furthermore, the tax-exempt bond program has reduced the availability of bonds for
renovation projects, which has created a state-wide slow-down of these types of projects.
This financing strategy may be more viable if the California Debt Limit Allocation Committee’s
regulations become more favorable to renovation projects and should be re-evaluated
periodically as it is a mechanism to do more substantial work on the property.

ESP has two replacement reserves, but neither are sufficient to pay for the needed
improvements and renovations. In 2020, AAHC drew down on some of the bank-held reserve
funds to pay for asphalt repairs and security camera installation. Of the bank-held reserves,
approximately $225,000 remains and of the owner-held reserves, $120,000 remains. Staff
recommends holding these reserves with the property for future operations and potential
emergencies.

As a fourth option, the property improvements could be funded by the Preservation funds
from AHA’s Reserve Policy. This strategy allows AHA to fund a portion of the $4.7 million
Minimum Scope. This strategy allows staff to implement the work as soon as possible. Given
the existing debt, any funding from AHA would be subordinate to the bank loan and secured
through an amended and restated Promissory Note and Deed of Trust.

Lastly, ESP can continue property maintenance and repairs on a limited, as-needed basis.
Under this funding scenario, life-safety issues would be addressed immediately. Any work

a &

Page 20 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 4
February 9, 2023

completed, immediately or in the future, would be paid for through the property operations,
until staff are able to identify a feasible way to recapitalize the property with more funding
sources.

Spending Across Three Target Projects

Given that there are three properties targeted for renovation (IP, CC and ESP) and limited
funds (the total renovation fund is $9M), staff recommends allocating spending to meet the
Agency’s priorities, which include addressing immediate property needs and improving
property operations. It is important to note that the limited scope of the proposed renovations
means that there are long-term needs that are being deferred due to the lack of substantial
funding. Further discussion of the long-term plans for these three properties is discussed
below.

As discussed in the Board Report from January 2023, IP has access to tax-increment
operating subsidy (CIC) funds and a portion of these funds can be used for property
maintenance. These funds are subject to City and State approval, and staff estimate that
there is approximately $1.2 million available for the property renovations, with the potential for
up to $2 million. With these funds available, staff can implement renovations on the property
without having to utilize AHA’s Reserve Policy Preservation Funds. Since these monies will
be reclaimed by the state if not spent by the end of 2026, this should be a priority. Depending
on the amount of the approved funds, the property’s Life-Safety scope will be funded, along
with the repair or replacement of building systems, like heating ventilation and cooling and
water heaters. If more CIC funding is obtained, staff will consider additional scope to address
accessibility issues.

CC is the neediest of the properties, with the highest per unit cost, but is also the smallest
with only 26 units. The property’s 2018 appraised value for land and improvements was $4.2
million. Considering the value of the property and the needs of other portfolio properties, staff
recommends that CC’s construction scope be limited to the Life-Safety Scope. In the January
2023 memo, staff recommended funding the Minimum Scope for CC, which is approximately
$2 million. However, after further consideration, staff is concerned about investing that much
in a property that is small and has an appraised value of double the cost of renovations
($4.2M). To meet Agency priorities, staff propose to implement the Life-Safety Scope, along
with repairs to the exterior breezeways and the conversion of the three-bedroom unit to a
two-bedroom unit to provide an onsite manager’s office. The Life-Safety Scope includes work
to upgrade electrical panels, replace faulty windows, address minor landscape issues,
replace the water heater, replace the roof, and repair roof drainage and downspouts. The
office conversion will improve operations by downsizing a difficult-to-rent large unit and
providing an on-site office for property management presence. Staff estimate that this work
will cost approximately $1.4 million, as outlined in Attachment 2,

ESP has Llfe-Safety Scope items to address, which staff estimate to cost approximately $1
million. These items include repairing staircases, addressing accessibility issues, repairing the building
envelope and leaking windows, and assessing the water service infrastructure. Depending on
preliminary cost estimates, there may be opportunities to also improve operations at the site.
These may include replacing electrical panels, addressing accessibility items, and replacing
the flooring in the common areas.

a &

Page 21 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 5
February 9, 2023

AHA Reserve Policy & Preservation Funds

In October 2021, the Board approved the creation of the AHA Reserve Policy. This policy
established three distinct categories of money that would be funded by Agency proceeds.
The three categories are Operating Reserve, Preservation Fund, and Production Fund. The
Operating Reserve is used for agency operations and is funded according to industry best
practices for organizational stability. The Production Funds are used to support the new
construction pipeline. The Preservation Fund is expected to fund renovations across the
entire portfolio.

Staff annually evaluate AHA’s net proceeds and provide annual updates to the Board. The
Board decides how these proceeds are allocated across the three categories. In February
2022, staff identified approximately $34 million of available funds, of which $9 million was set
aside for the Preservation Fund. Some of these funds are anticipated to be spent over the
next 2-3 years. A portion of the funds will go towards addressing life-safety and immediate
needs across the entire existing portfolio as recommended by the Property Needs
Assessments (PNAs) and any urgent accessibility issues. The PNA findings were presented
to the Board during the January 2023 meeting. Additionally, the Preservation fund will pay for
work associated with the remodel of the AHA maintenance yard into additional office space,
as well as the Anne B. Diament balcony repairs required by a 2020 study. Staff anticipate the
conversion will cost approximately $2 million and the ABD balcony repairs will cost
approximately $1.1 million.

Please refer to Attachment 3 for the anticipated uses of the Preservation Fund.
Given the limited nature of the Preservation Funds, staff would also plan to apply for all
funding that becomes available to fund portfolio renovations, like City HOME and Community

Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding.

Staff Recommendations

1. Request and expend all available CIC funds between now and 2026 for IP to the
extent permitted by the state. Move forward with planning for this work at IP in the
2023-24 AHA budget.

2. Work with a provisional $3.8 million spending cap for completing work at CC and
Esperanza. This spending cap may mean only implementing the Life-Safety Scope
and targeting high priority/immediate items first. Staff recommend deferring interior unit
refurbishment as units are vacated, and to pay for renovations through the property’s
operating budget. Staff is using a $3.8 million cap at this time to be spent on CC and
ESP because it allows AAHC to implement other work that needs to be done (i.e. the
AHA Office Renovation and the Portfolio Work) and leaves some funds available for
contingency and/or other work that may arise over the next few years.

3. Apply for any funds, as they become available, that fund portfolio renovations, such as
funding through the City's HOME and CDBG programs.

Related Points of Concern:

e Temporary relocation — In the January 2023 report, staff mentioned the potential need
for temporary relocation. Through staff’s latest analysis, unit work is unlikely, which

a &

Page 22 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 6
February 9, 2023

means that temporary relocation will not be required. However, if there are funds to do
unit renovations and temporary relocation is required, staff will be sure to report any
plans for temporary relocation to the Board.

¢ Long-term Households & Renovated Units — Given the limited funds and Agency
priorities, unit renovations will need to occur as units are vacated and would be paid
for by the property’s operating budget. Typically, when a unit is vacated, property
management will renovate the unit for the incoming tenant. Within the three subject
properties, there are households that have been long-term tenants and their units have
not been renovated. Staff propose analyzing the possibility of offering the longest-
tenured households recently renovated units.

¢ Construction costs — Construction costs are high and continue to rise in the Bay Area.
Staff is tracking cost trends and holding healthy contingencies for escalation in the
estimates. Staff is also planning to begin working with architects and design
consultants later this year, pending approval by the Board of predevelopment
expenses, and will eventually hire a third-party construction manager and contractor to
price the expected work.

e Ongoing property needs — The proposed scope discussed in staff's recommendations
covers some work that needs to happen in the next three years. The PNAs evaluate
the property needs over the next twenty years. While there is a challenging financial
landscape (high mortgage rates, limited soft funding, and limited tax credits and bonds
available for rehab projects), this may not always be the case. Staff will continue to
monitor the financing landscape and track property needs. Future options may include
leveraging the Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund and/or Moving to Work Funds,
evaluating the feasibility of using Faircloth Housing Vouchers, utilizing property income
once existing loans are paid off, and monitoring the tax credit program. Furthermore,
for a property like CC, where the amount of work needed exceeds over half of the
value of the property, staff will evaluate the potential to sell the property.

Next Steps:

e Seismic scope is not included in this analysis. Although seismic scope is not
anticipated to be extensive, AHA plans to procure seismic evaluations for its portfolio
by mid-2023.

¢ Present a proposed timeline and estimated cost/scope of work for IP, CC, and ESP
and impacts on the available Reserve Policy funds in August 2023.

FISCAL IMPACT

For IP and the use of CIC Funds, staff note that these funds are not immediately available.
They can only be requested in tranches every six months, usually between July 1 and
December 31 of any given year. Like the IP balcony work, staff will likely need to request the
use of an internal bridge loan from AHA that will be repaid once the CIC Funds are delivered.

For CC and Esperanza, AHA would make a one-time investment to cover renovations. The
investment will be funded through the Preservation Fund set aside by the Reserve Policy.
Staff anticipate that there is sufficient funding in the Preservation Fund to cover the
anticipated costs of the two properties.

a &

Page 23 of 28



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 7
February 9, 2023

The one-time investment would be structured as residual receipts loans between AHA and
AAHC to complete the contemplated scope of work at each property. The loans will be
secured through existing promissory notes and recorded deeds for each property. These
documents will need to be amended and restated.

It is also worth noting that IP, CC, and ESP, will be on par or exceed budgeted cash flow by
the end of the fiscal year. Any excess generated cash flow from these properties will be
utilized to repatriate funds from Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation back to the Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda, as the original transfers were made through a seller note
mechanism.

CEQA
This item is not applicable to CEQA.

RECOMMENDATION
Accept the Report on the Substantial Recapitalization Plan for Esperanza Apartments.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Item 5.C - Esp Attachments FINAL

Respectfully submitted,

Allyson Ujimori, Senior Project Manager

a &

Page 24 of 28



8¢ 40 Gz abed

'S1500 |ed9| pue 3upueul}

sapnoul os|e 31 ‘9doag uolledipuAs Jo4 ‘uolledojas Asesodwa) pue ‘uipyiwuad ‘4sdeuew uo1PNIISUOD ‘Suliojiuow d33em 3uljienssd
‘51502 U3ISap apn|aul $3502 140s 2d0oI2S WNWIUIA 3Yy] “J01luow adem Suljiensud pue Sunyiwiad spnjaul 3dods A1ajes-a)i J0J S1S02 3OS,

"%y T 40 piepuels Aisnpul,

UOI1B|BIS 350D 404 % 7T PappPe ue snid ‘%GT 4o piepuels Alasnpul SSPNJIUL YdIYm ‘9 /7 = AdUa3UI1IUO) |BIO] 4 4«
"9p0) ulp|ing YD puoAaq o3 1ey3 syuswauinbad A3lj1qiIssadde D)L 9pn|aul 10U S0P 9d0IS WNWIUIIA] 4

"‘9oueudluiely ulp|ing Jo1491x3 @ Suideaspue pue sealy UOWWOD) Ul JNII0 OS|e SuolleAoual Alajes 13 yj|eaH sawos,,

9TT'98TS v6L'6€S 9S/'GES TYEYTS 8CT'8S Hun Jad

G98'EEECTS | 8LT'SLLYS LYL'06TYS 976'0T6CS L6€E'L86S Tviol

000°008$ 0S 0S 0S 0$ 994 Jadojanaq

SY9'TY9'TS | 0S 0S 0S 0$ SaNI9sAY pazijende)

698'9€9S 97T'8TTS 97T'8TIS 041965 0€0'ETS Aduasuiuo) 1s0) 1os

TTT'CL68S | 09C'T8T'TS 0927'78T'TS G69'T96S 00€'0€TS §S1S0D HoS

¥S8°79C'TS | 0CT'ETVS 9TL'€ESES L61'8TTS LS9'E0TS $S¥S00 09

0TLLT6TS | 66%°LT9S 6ET'LESS TrY'LYES OT¥'LSTS #%xA2US3UIIUOD 150 pJeH

£99°C0T'LS | TLO'VTETS 90v'686'TS 7T8'98T'TS 000°€8SS S150) pJeH |B10]L

000°059S 0S 0S 0s 0$ 32UeMO||V Sulp|ing uaalo

000909CS | 0ST'LEO'TS €85°70LS 0S 0s siola1u| Hun

¥¥8'€90°CS | 00G'SSYS 00S'SS¥S 00S'SS¥S 0$ adueuajule|p
8uip|ing Jo1491x3 g Suideaspue]

00S'VIVS 000°€TS 000°€TS 000°€TS 0S SPo3N ealy uowwo)

[A4N1:TAS TTeseTs TTeSETsS TTEe'SETS 0S «xAN|1G1SS200Y

000°€8SS 000°€8SS 000°€8SS 000°€8SS 000°€8SS «A194es-3417

adoog SHUN %SC /M syun ot syun o/m adoog
uonedipuAs | adods wnwiuliy | /M wnwiui wnwiulnl Adjes-a9417

$150) 13 s2do3s s, juswiedy ezuesads3y — T INJINHIOVLLY

J'G way
€70z Menuqga4
$10193.1Q JO pJieog DHVY



8¢ 40 9 abed

"SPa3N BaJy Uuowwo) pue A}1|IqISSa20Yy Japun ||e} OS|e [|Im Syudwanosdw| A1a)es 13 Yl|eaH awos,

L8L'TSS Jun 134

8SYOVETS Tv101

0S 994 Jadojanaq

0S SaAIaSaY pazijeide)

9/T'T€ES Aduaduinuo) 3507 140S

¥9LTTES $350) 40§

6ETETTS $1s0) 05
9YTL8TS Aduaguinuo) 1507 pieH
€ET'E69S $1507) pJeH [e10]
000°0STS SpaaN eaJly uowwo)
0S Ay1j1q1ssa20y
EET'EVSS «A13je5-3)17

adoos Alojes-aj1

$150) 221430 8 A1ajes-a417 J4addi) eulyd — ¢ INJWHIVLLY

J'G way
€70z Menuqga4
$10193.1Q JO pJieog DHVY



8¢ 40 /g abed

080°CELS

000°008°€S- (pepuawiwodal se) 453 13 DD 18 YI0M qeyay pasodo.d

000°00T'TS- Sa1U0d|eg Juawelq ‘g aluuy

000°000C$- UOI1BAOURY 221340

0C6'L9E'TS- (11e39p 404 ¢ JUBWIYDLIIY 33S) YJOAN OI|04H0d

000°0006$ pun4 uoIleAISSad
sas paijeddiuy - pung uoleAIasald

pun4 uoeA1asaid ay3 jo sasn paledpnuy — € INJINHIVLLY

J'qway
€70z Menuqga4
$J10329.I(Q 40 pieog JHVY



82 40 gz obed

026195

STT'096

274

526'79T

veEL6TTT

8E6'€07
629'56€
€1v'6zy
8YTTLT
S68'L9
689'027
657'85€
T88'80L
90£'£09
TE9'TZ8
8v'8SL
59088
T£0'886
STT'THL
1b6'09
S8S'9VL.
£08'ETS
818'TL
60509
505765

sieloL

$

$

$

DDDDDD DD DDDDDD DD DN DD

00052 $ 00s'b0T $ ST $ VEV'SIT  $ 00Ty § 0SS $ 0sL'6sT $ 006151 $ 00TvE $ 008WT $ zIs‘ove $ 0s8'09T _§ 005701 3
Suvico)|
Hun 29903 a5 s o1Busel papey
w004 kipune] loupAp s wowaneydost [-smopuian popoaul
“poBeurp o) a5 Bupsica syun|  ouy Aiddns -Buquinig| se ‘snodsumop)
BPID-DVAH| Jo waueda| ayona. jo voneesuf  sinodsumop ‘siemnd| pue ssomnd]
redos SN/ g poseyg] so0d puesno|  Fuyoos weweredal popoouse]  ooedauuredo|
-uyooy| weip| jooroyspoan|  -Buquinig] Py -smopuip| suedoy -Buyooy oeidosueday “sjooy]
Buneos| samous sasew]|  Bugooy Suse|  -aduns-os pur] seae u iom| siredoy -033masiBuipis| Sueyiano Anuol -Buipig| win)
Jooudsoren| sanoz uep]  sams ueres|  eosou yeydst) Buyoos ‘sinodsumop) sumsyhaua| poom pageurp) uonggiau pue Supss paseurp|  saueusaure 0 0]
Aenotiem parensyol Sussiyy 91 [z|mopum Suppaed| pue ssonn8 pageuwrp) -oa0 Buiseay| oveidos g-zogt|  redospue]  ooudos -Buipis] -j00u|  osow Buneds 1pi
uieg -sotaancy| wowesgdasf  woworedos]  -02mspue|  pue aaual pue Suissiy Joou|  woysnoup pesewea|  ssomwiy]|  aueidossoan|  ysewas pue jeas .
Buping sooammg o] jopesuuf  Buprs Beusis| uonediun dup paposu| -skemtem 230.5u00 Budesspuer p|  umosdieno|  Aunis Bupireal  -smopuim|  siespaeng sgeweq|
soon| sseak 61 ouesquow]-sopio -soyspuy] ppe ofeueiq|  ured pue suredoy wi Budespur| e 101 4| Bunwess pue vorsnng
wyij-odedspue jooy-jooy|  puesioos|  -odeaspuen| -Budeaspueq -soporca| - pue 3 avens-0. -Buppaeg| -Bupuoy| -Buidesspuer|peag-Buidesspue|Suipis sopoaxa|  ssiepm souodreq
000'56 $ | 000’86 $|os6c $ | v8s'6z $ | 0oo'vz $ | oos‘t $ | oos'zet 00860T $ | ooL's $ | oos's $ | zev'zer $ | ose'ter $ | oos'ze $ ey pausagag 31
Bugtop
sauisem Addns pr——
sorem poziueAre wompuos wasm|  fauedans -8sg 1 N
“Buquinig| ssasst 01 Sudods projiaro| x3d 4o saddos)
N VN “oouds pe) N esouie> pue Sumal|  un>ur> 1aAsp earnsapp| m sauy Addin] papaay
Ui jos asiow pue ouphy Suweapr00s|  euger-beg 1 un| w8 ooeidad awewooeida.iieda]
sugop * Bussy Jenuue puswio3y (owsos) Bussiw|  -Buiquinial paseurp) soroum @
Wwowdi0Rl sonsst dnopeq|  wowpene vonepunoy| “oriou0] poddens|  -Buipis soaixa| (s9q0.15) Auqessoaov |
pue eays aydninu poviodoy| o1 s1s04 ‘Sussiuw Jojieq i duel| 200 -sioreayl ferowsa, vav -euonippy|
. uonepuncy Bussi -soury o35epm say|  Joden -sooeds peas|  vay poow sarepm] 0 ‘spaezey] arpessan worsks|  spe epppoum
~asedspaeao| ~o8eusys| st eipuey dunoonuos|  -eardeng woou Aspune|
Bussi) Bussiy 15| uoneseysuap) papaau Jo Aawins [Inspue jputiosiad Aoustiowo|  oup eseiday]  pue sBusou| perpei-skemvirem| 101 kg mo7 00
aikodosg|  Auodosy] a0y Sussiu o8eusts|  -az09 1N -areas toaaxal 1pis souopxa| s aBeus -Buptael
- $ - $ | osc't8 $ | oo0's $| - $ | osc'ot $ | oosze $ | oos'zz $ | ooo'e $ | oss'1 $ | 000’z $ | oos‘sz $ spaan|
sieipawiw) -g|
(ooeiday) ssoysinduma|
sy pu s poudwa|  dxa pue suoneion|
s10412 ucduol fenpiwpur sotaxa| suonejon onssdsu sioysmgumg|  uedo -adegq oy
foued uueyy] IR>24 sjqssoq| paddeas| 10 Joam| VIN paddens 5414 *xog xou)| pea)
7207 a1dxo} -soysemysia  10u -siozeayl respuei] 3¢ parou 30U o 200 ~ss0yeay| 6107 poaidea “2zoulE|  wonog pue Supus|
ssaysinBu ol wowdinbaf - s23eA ‘STusou supes|  -sioysinBupxe) soemlsioysinBupxe aupa| jo s suonzon|  puokaq puaxe 0y
pandxe) paifsaa afqusog|  pue jeipuy| padewrpfoay  ssursoul steipuy sdusou| ooy -aurd]  op sueipuet -sareag
2403 apuiidg] ssuson|  -suoveapy| -supes sopoaxa|  pue Buwess| s8uisou pue sifes pueH pue ssuisoy pue spespuey] 1707 pasidey 8107 paudhg
ag  -saress oy unop e - Bupuog|  -areas soaauy ~sdas/sarers aouaIxg| 1235 ol 115 3un o, ~s0renaa| oreaynies iorenaig|
0000 $ | oos't $ | sev's s | oos'e s|ooz'zr  $|osoz $ 009'6 $| - $ | oog’e s | oos'oe $ | oosz $ | oos's $
3A08V SNOILI3rO¥d ¥V3A 0Z IHL NI A3ANTONI LON 34V MO1389 S1SOJ JHL
002'950'T  $ | vE6'VEL'T S| seziose s ezzeee S|stweze S| L9609 s | soz'9sz’z $ | ooo'st s|vis'est  s|ss9ELr 5| 9TSVOE'T $ £97719 H B3 $ 07-1 sieaj
o101
85581 sJesoor sl s]ese'st slessor S| - s | eezser S | osv'se S | s6v'e. [ B S 06EEL S| zeve S Thoz
BEL'VT S| - sluso'st  s]s9T s|zo0mr s|svsT s ] €0t'st S| tv9'9 s| - s |89 s ] sot'se S oes'siz S |rzeve S 0T
BEL'VT T05'662 (e 8E0'ST 29 68€'LE v65'8 860 0’01 bLE9E s GIs 1ze've ovoz
88107 E6'EL 8029 6.5 SE6'SY 68E'LE eS0T - 66 628 S 5699 12009 6802
o' 61209 ETE0T 6277 279 687601 5568 86v°T 7L6'S vSTT9 S s1s L7v'S9E 880
85265 v26'6v 9ES'VT €687 227’9 687601 €918 seL'L 88T 60909 S s1s LSTL6 180¢
85581 €018y 92941 0589 SLEw s | eseze 200z b9t oz60t YEEITT oz1'y R 9£0z
85581 £96'6EE 9651 8871 vETST 68E'LE (1% 0SETZ 8877 ¥29'20 S09°E OLETY S€0C
Y0'SYT TerTSt €58° otz Tr'9 £0T'6Y 556 b9 €10 65221 ST6'6€ OLETY [E
79T €2E°96T (B 295's 15T 6€0'v6 509 - €2 8Y0'TZL STs OTO'TvE £€07
v9'19 SvO'bYT [EX YTz VIve Wyt 68107 VEE'sT 00902 S08'0ET 061'8T voL'8S €0
9€'9E £0V'06 €85 9808 9L5'6C TYB'ETE €56 - 858" 816621 67611 26799 TE0Z
180°6 B K474 343 S| 68L6T Slevett $ | 689°€T $ $ | tve'soe g |oce'st S | vEE'ST B pAladl $ | eov'rer $ SIS $|ziv'vs $ 0€0Z
186982 S| L6v'v9 s|s6coe _ s|ecew s|evs B S | voezer S |stres S| - s|eerT  s|evete $ S8 S | etvvs s 620¢
Sev've s | Te0'v9 s|seeoe S| szt s | eseor S s | tve'ger S | v68ys $|vee'st  serevr S| is'ss S SIS S| rsv'est S 8207
s s [ zos09t s|eesc _ s[essmt S|eesor s S | sevevt S | 9059 S|ozvvt  s|eeest  s|ovves S 19701 < | osezer S 20z
zL'Te s[ssowv s|ess9e  s|weser sliscer s S| every S | 6v'es S|v8ov9  s|evoor  s|tore S os8us  s|oeror $ 920¢
Lz s|sso'est s|ess9z  s|szomr sleoomr s s | zve'se s | so0es s| - slaws  s]reots s wesy  s|use s 520t
SETZ9 s|emss s|veeee $|seo'st sl s|ss $ | eveoer S [otezs S|sezer  s|secsr S| Tievor S ese6y | c08L s v20C
885'52 s Joze'se slossor  s|ssvoe slersoe  s|esce $|evioer s | s16'ss s | sszt s]eoe s [ sozor S esysl s | zc0e0r S €20C
6€ 05 T v 6 1 (3 8 s b (3 0 9 SLNN 20 4]
Kieudson YIOVNYI|
emais uyor wemais uyor | wemaisuyor | wemaisuyor | memaisuyor | wemers uyor uemaisuyor | memais uyor | uemais uyor | wemars uyor VHY VHY
3 ¥INMO|
uisNoH Aoy epowely SHYY IHWY IHYY IHWY IHWY SHYY IHYY IHYY SHYY VHY SHYY
SNIQUVD 3SNOH ISNOH “MOTIM ISNOH
JISNIHS NYOHLMVH soanod [ o s | nwmuans | 2SNOHNEvd | 39vTunlouava | Naauvo Lovdva NT0ONT Nioonn | 29VTIATIOVE | 30140 vhY asy

SNOILI3rOY¥d JUNLIANIAX3 0Z-T SHV3IA O11041¥0d VHY

SPa2N O}|0J10d - ¥ ININHIV.LLY

g way
€207 Arenigay

510193110 40 PIROG IHYY



